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Bruce D. Vargo, Esq.

SCARPONE & VARGO LLC

50 Park Place, Suite 1003

Newark, New Jersey 07102

Tel: (973) 623-4101

Fax: (973) 623-4181

bvargo@scarponevargo.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Cuozzo Speed Technologies LLC

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

CUOZZO SPEED TECHNOLOGIES LLC,
Plaintiff, Civil Action No.
V.
TOMTOM, INC. and MAZDA MOTOR OF JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
AMERICA, INC,,
Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Cuozzo Speed Technologies LLC, for its Complaint against Defendants
TomTom Inc. and Mazda Motor of America, Inc., (collectively, “Defendants™) states and
alleges:

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Cuozzo Speed Technologies LLC (“CST”) is a limited liability company
organized under New Jersey law with a principal place of business at 14 Ver Valen St., Closter,
New Jersey 07624.

2. Defendant TomTom, Inc. (“TomTom”) is a Massachusetts corporation with a

principal place of business at 150 Baker Avenue, Concord, Massachusetts 01742, TomTom may
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be served with process through its registered agent, Jocelyn Vigreux, 150 Baker Ave. Ext.,
Concord, Massachusetts 01742.

3. Defendant Mazda Motor of America, Inc. (“Mazda™) is a corporation organized
under the laws of California with a principal place of business at 7755 Irvine Center Drive,
Irvine, California 92623. Mazda may be served with process through its registered agent, The
Corporation Trust Company, 820 Bear Tavern Road, West Trenton, New Jersey 08628.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4, This action arises under the patent laws of the United States, 35 U.S.C. § 1, et
seq., including § 271. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and
1338(a).

5. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (b)-(c) and § 1400 (b)
because (1) Defendants regularly conduct business in this District and are subject to personal
jurisdiction here; (2) a substantial part of the events giving rise to CST’s claims occurred in this
District; (3) Defendants have committed and continue to commit acts of infringement in this
District; and (4) Defendants have harmed and continue to cause harm to CST in this District.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

6. On August 17, 2004, the United States Patent and Trademark Office issued
United States Patent No. 6,778,074 (the *074 Patent) after a full and fair examination. The 074
Patent is titled “Speed Limit Indicator and Method for Displaying Speed and the Relevant Speed
Limit” and issued to the sole inventor, Giuseppe A. Cuozzo. A true and correct copy of the *074
Patent is attached as Exhibit A.

7. The *074 Patent is presumed valid and enforceable under 35 U.S.C. § 282.

8. Since the '074 Patent issued, mobile device manufacturers, software developers,

and GPS navigation system manufacturers such as TomTom, and automakers such as Mazda,
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have recognized the value of Mr. Cuozzo’s invention and developed and sold products and
services meeting each and every claim element or practicing each and every step of the claims of
the 074 Patent.

9. Mazda manufactures, imports, sells, offers to sell, and distributes vehicles,
including the Mazda CX-5, with the TomTom Mazda NB1 Navigation System which includes
Speeding Alerts to alert a driver when a speed limit is exceeded.

10. TomTom manufactures, imports, sells, offers to sell, and distributes GPS-based
navigation systems having a Speed Limit Warning feature.

1. CST owns all right, title, and interest to the *074 Patent including the exclusive
right to enforce the *074 Patent, the exclusive right to license the *074 Patent, and the exclusive
right to seek and collect all past and future monetary or injunctive relief for infringement of the

’(074 Patent.

INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT No. 6,778,074

12. CST incorporates each of the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

13.  TomTom has been and is infringing literally and/or under the doctrine of
equivalents, directly, contributorily, or by inducement, the *074 Patent.

14, TomTom directly infringes, and will continue to infringe, the 074 patent in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271 by making, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing,
without authority, products embodying one or more claims of the *074 Patent.

15. Infringing TomTom products that embody at least claims 1, 2, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13,
18, 19, and 20 of the *074 Patent include, without limitation, the GO LIVE Top Gear Edition,
GO 2505, GO 2535TM WTE, GO LIVE 1535M, GO LIVE 2535M, VIA 1505 series, VIA 1535
series, VIA 1405 series, VIA 1435 series, GO 2535 series, GO 2435 series, GO 2505TM, GO

2405TM, ONE series, XXL 550 series, and XXL 540 series GPS-based navigation devices.

3



Case 2:12-cv-03626-CCC-JAD Document 1 Filed 06/15/12 Page 4 of 16 PagelD: 4

16.  Mazda has been and is infringing literally and/or under the doctrine of
equivalents, directly, contributorily, or by inducement, the 074 Patent.

17. Mazda directly infringes, and will continue to infringe, the '074 patent in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271 by making, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing,
without authority, products embodying one or more claims of the 074 Patent.

18.  Infringing Mazda products that embody at least claims 1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12,
13, 18, 19, and 20 of the *074 Patent include navigation systems with Speeding Alert installed in
Mazda CX-5 vehicles.

19, In November 2011, TomTom and Mazda announced their North American
partnership and debut of the TomTom Mazda NB1 in-dash navigation system showcased in the
Mazda CX-5 sport utility vehicle.

20.  The Mazda/TomTom NB1 navigation system provides a warning indicator in the
navigation status bar when a driver exceeds a speed limit.

21. Mazda and TomTom have contributed and continue to contribute to direct
infringement of the *074 Patent by others including consumers in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b)
by providing Mazda and TomTom customers navigation systems with speed limit warning
features that are not staple articles of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use, are
specially adapted for an infringing use of the *074 Patent, and embody a material part of the
inventions claimed in the *074 Patent.

22.  Mazda and TomTom actively induce consumers and others to directly infringe the
"074 Patent, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(c), by providing products including those listed

above with instructions, user manuals, or technical assistance, actively and directly, assisting,
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and encouraging infringement of the *074 Patent, and/or by providing navigation systems having
a core and common feature leading to third-party infringement of the 074 Patent.

23.  Mazda and TomTom committed and continue to commit these acts of
infringement without license or authorization.

24.  CST has incurred and will incur attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses in the
prosecution of this action. As a result of Defendants’ infringement, CST has been damaged in an

amount not presently known.

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT OF LITIGATION HOLD

25.  Defendants are hereby notified that they are legally obligated to locate, preserve,
and maintain all records, notes, drawings, documents, data, communications, materiais,
clectronic recordings, audio/video/photographic recordings, and digital files, including edited
and unedited or “raw” source material, and other information and tangible things that Defendants
know, or reasonably should know, may be relevant to actual or potential claims, counterclaims,
defenses, and/or damages by any party or potential party in this lawsuit, whether created or
residing in hard copy form or in the form of electronically stored information (hereafter
collectively referred to as “Potential Evidence™).

26.  As used above, the phrase “clectronically stored information” includes without
limitation: computer files (and file fragments), e-mail (both sent and received, whether internally
or externally), information concerning e-mail (including but not limited to logs of e-mail history
and usage, header information, and deleted but recoverable e-mails), text files (including drafts,
revisions, and active or deleted word processing documents), instant messages, audio recordings
and files, video footage and files, audio files, photographic footage and files, spreadsheets,
databases, calendars, telephone logs, contact manager information, internet usage files, and all

other information created, received, or maintained on any and all electronic and/or digital forms,
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sources and media, including, without limitation, any and all hard disks, removable media,
peripheral computer or electronic storage devices, laptop computers, mobile phones, personal
data assistant devices, Blackberry devices, iPhones, video cameras and still cameras, and any and
all other locations where electronic data is stored. These sources may also include any personal
electronic, digital, and storage devices of any and all of Defendants® agents or employees if
Defendants’ electronically stored information resides there.

27.  Defendants are hereby further notified and forewarned that any alteration,
destruction, negligent loss, or unavailability, by act or omission, of any Potential Evidence may
result in damages or a legal presumption by the Court and/or jury that the Potential Evidence is
not favorable to Defendants’ claims and/or defenses. To avoid such a result, Defendants’
preservation duties include, but are not limited to, the requirement that Defendants immediately
notify their agents and employees to halt and/or supervise the auto-delete functions of
Defendants’ electronic systems and refrain from deleting Potential Evidence, either manually or
through a policy of periodic deletion.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Cuozzo Speed Technologies LLC requests that judgment be entered in its favor and
against Defendants, and that the Court award the following relief:

A. Judgment that Defendants have infringed one or more claims of the 074 Patent
either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents;

B. Damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 sufficient to compensate CST for
Defendants’ past infringement and any continuing or future infringement and in

no event less than a reasonable royalty;
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C. Judgment and order requiring Defendants provide an accounting and pay
supplemental damages to CST, including without limitation, pre-judgment and
post-judgment interest; and

D. Any and all other relief to which CST may show itself to be entitled or to which
this Court may deem is just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Cuozzo Speed Technologies LLC demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

OF COUNSEL SCARPONE & VARGO LLC
50 Park Place, Suite 1003

Cabrach J. Connor Newark, New Jersey 07102

Jason W. Deats Tel: (973) 623-4101

REED & SCARDINO LLP Fax: (973) 623-4181

301 Congress Avenue, Suite 1250 bvargo@scarponevargo.com

Austin, TX 78701

Tel: (512) 474-2449

Fax: (512) 474-2622 By: __/s/ Bruce D. Vargo
cconnor@reedscardino.com Bruce D. Vargo
Jjdeats@reedscardino.com

Ed Goldstein

Alisa Lipski

GOLDSTEIN & LIPSKI PLLC
1177 West Loop South, Suite 400
Houston, TX 77027

Tel: (713) 877-1515

Fax: (713) 877-1145
egoldstein@gliplaw.com
alipski@gliplaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Cuozzo Speed Technologies, LLC

Dated: June 15, 2012
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TR A0 AR O R
US006778074B1

»
a» United States Patent o) Patent No.:  US 6,778,074 Bl
Cuozzo (4s) Date of Patent: Ang. 17, 2004
(54) SPEED LIMIT INDICATOR AND METHOD 5485161 A * 1/19%
FOR DISPLAYING SPEED AND THE 5,680,306 A * 1071997
RELEVANT SPEED LIMIT 819,198 A * 10/1998
D411,122 § * 6/1999
(76) Inventor: Giuseppe A, Cuozzo, 17 Meple St., 2'995'895 A1 SRR
,134,499 A * 10/2000
Bloomficld, NJ (US) 07003 6161072 A * 122000
. \ — . 6,265,989 B1 * 7/2001
(*) Notice:  Subject to any disclaimer, the term of this P * 21003
patent is extended or adjusted under 35 . 15,59 BZ
US.C. 154(b) by 114 days. * cited by examiner
| No: 1 o Primary Examiner—Nina Tong
(21) Appl. No.: 10/1060,37! 7 ABSTRACT
(22) Filed: Mar. 18, 2002 e .
, Speed limit indicators and methods for determining speed,
(51) Int. CL7 ..ot e ressnasins ssanane B60Q 1/00 the relevant SPBGd limit, and displa_yjng same make it casy
(52) US. CL .ircnnircnn, 340/441; 340/905; 340/988  for the driver of a vehicle o compare his current speed with
(58) Field of Search ... 340/441, 905,  the legal limit for the location in which he is traveling. This
340/438, 901, 988; 701/117, 119, 202 climinates the need for the driver fo take his eyes off the road
to look for speed limit signs, thereby reducing the chance of
(56) References Cited an accident, and resolves any confusion that might exist as
to what the current legal limit is. An audible warning of
U.S. PATENT DOCUMENTS excessive speed reduces the amount of time the driver needs
4315295 A * 21982 Zocholl .ooorerrrerernernns 361/96 1o spend examining the speedometer.
D270,339 S * 8§/1983 Boleis

4935850 A * 6/1990 Smith, Jr. .eevirirercrcreenn

20 Claims, 3 Drawing Sheets
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SPEED LIMIT INDICATOR AND METHOD
FOR DISPLAYING SPEED AND THE
RELEVANT SPEED LIMIT

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

i. Field of the Invention

The present invention relates to a speed limit indicator
and method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit
for use in connection with vehicles. The speed limit indica-
tor and method for displaying speed and the relevant speed
limit has particular utility in connection with displaying the
current speed of 2 vehicle and bow it relates (o the legal
speed limit for the current location in which the vehicle is
traveling,

2. Description of the Prior Art

Speed limit indicators and methads for determining
speed, the relevant speed limit, and displaying same are
desirable for making it easy for the driver of a vehicle to
compare his current speed with the legal limit for the
location in which he is traveling. This eliminates the need for
the driver to take his eyes off the road to look for speed limit
signs, and resolves any confusion that might exist as to what
the current legal speed limit is. An audible warning of
excessive speed reduces the amount of time the driver needs
to spend examining the speedometer. By allowing the driver
to keep his eyes on the road more of the time, the speed limit
indicator reduces i chance of an accident.

The use of speed regulators is known in the prior art. For
example, U.S. Pat. No. 5,485,161 to Vaughn discloses a
vehicle speed control based on GPS/MAP matching of
posted speeds. However, the Vaughn *161 patent does not
display the current speed limit, and has further drawbacks of
not allowing the driver to speed in the event of an
emergency, poteptially creating a more dangerous situation.

U.S. Pat. No. 5,315,295 to Fujii discloses a vehicle speed
control system that decelerzies a vehicle during a tum.
However, the Fujii *295 patent does not display the current
speed limit, and additionally does not provide an audible
notification to the driver when the speed limit is being
exceeded under all situations.

Similarly, U.S. Pat. No. 6,134,499 to Goode et al. dis-
closes a road speed control system for a vehicle driven by an
internal combustion engine that controls engine speed with
transmission gear speed. However, the Goode et al. *499
patent does not display the current speed limit, and cannot
audibly notify the driver when the speed lLimit is being
exceeded.

Additionally, US. Pat. No. 5,680,306 to Shin et al.
discloses a system, and method for enabling a vehicle to
track a path that positions and navigates an amtonomous
vehicle. However, the Shin et al. "306 patent does not
display the current speed limit, and has the additional
deficiency of not audibly notifying the driver when the speed
limit is being exceeded.

Furthermore, US. Pat. No. 5,995,895 to Watt et al.
discloses a control of vehicular systems in response to
anticipated conditions predicted using predetermined geo-
referenced maps. However, the Wait et al. *895 patent does
not display the current speed limit, and has the addittonal
deficiency of not audibly notifying the driver when the speed
limit is being exceeded.

In addition, U.S. Pat, No. Des. 270,339 to Boleis discloses
a display plate for an electronic navigation aid. However, the
Boleis *339 patent does not display the current speed limit,
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and does not audibly notify the driver when the speed Limit
is being exceeded. Lastly, U.S. Pat. No. Des. 411,122 io
Velazquez discloses a vehicle speed limiting controlier.
However, the Velazquez *122 patent does not display the
current speed limit, and has the additional deficiency of not
audibly notifying the driver when the speed limit is being
exceeced,

While the above-described devices fulfill their respective,
particular objectives and requirements, the aforementioned
patents do not describe a speed limit indicator and method
for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit that allows
displaying the current speed of a vehicle and how it relates
to the lega]l speed limit for the current location it which the
vehicle is traveling. The above patents make no provision
for displaying the currcnt speed lmit to the driver. They also
do not audibly notify the driver when the speed limit is being
exceeded.

Therefore, a need exists for 2 new and improved speed
limit indicator and method for displaying speed and the
relevant speed limit that can be used for displaying the
current speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal
speed limit for the current location in which the vehicle is
traveling. In this regard, the present invention substantially
Tulfills this need. In this respect, the speed limit indicator and
method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit
according to the present invention substantially departs from
the conventiorul concepts and designs of the prior art, and
in doing so provides an apparatus primarily developed for
the purpose of displaying the current speed of a vehicle and
how it relates to the legal speed limit for the current location
in which the vehicle is traveling,

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

In view of the foregoing disadvantages inherent in the
known types of speed regulators now present in the prior art,
the present fnvention provides an improved speed limit
indicator and method for displaying speed and the relevant
speed limit, and overcomes the above-mentioned disadvan-
tages and drawbacks of the prior art. As such, the general
purpose of the present invention, which will be described
subsequently in greater detail, is o provide a new and
improved speed limit indicator and method for displaying
speed and the relevant speed limit for displaying the current
speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal speed limit
for the current location in which the vehicle is traveling
which has all the advaniages of the prior art mentioned
heretofore and many novel features that result in a speed
limit indicator and method for displaying speed and the
relevant speed limit which is not anticipated, rendered
obvious, suggested, or even implied by the prior art, either
alone or in any combination thereof,

To attain this, the present invention essentially comprises
a speed limit indicator comprising a speed Limit display and
an attached speedometer.

Also, the invention comprises & method of determining
speed, the relevant speed limit, and displaying same, which
comprises the steps of: upload current information to
regional speed limit database, determine the vehicle’s loca-
tion and speed using a global positioning system receiver,
obtain the speed limit for the vehicle’s current location from
the database, compare the vehicle’s speed to the speed limit,
generate a tone if the vehicle is specding, send the speed
limit to the display control unit, and modify the speed limit
display to reflect which speeds are below the speed limit and
which speeds exceed the speed limit.

There has thus been outlined, rather broadly, the more
important features of the invention in order that the detailed
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description thereof that follows may be betier understood
and in order that the present contribution to the art may be
better appreciated.

The invention may also include a color display compris-
ing the speed limit indicator which may take the form of a
colored filter or a liquid crystal display. The speedometer
may have a needle and speed denoting markings. There are,
of course, additional features of the invention that will be
descobed hereinafter and which will form the subject matter
of the claims attached,

Numerous objects, features and advantages of the present
invention will be readily apparent to those of ordinary skill
in the art upon a reading of the following detailed descrip-
tion of presently current, but nonetheless illustrative,
embodiments of the present invention when taken in con-
junction with the accompanying drawings. In this respect,
before explaining the current embodiment of the invention
in detail, it is to be understood that the invention is not
limited in its application to the details of construction and to
the arrangements of the components set forth in the follow-
ing description or illustrated in the drawings. The invention
is capable of other embodiments and of being practiced and
cartied out in various ways. Also, it is to be understood that
the phraseology and terminology employed herein are for
the purpase of descriptions and should not be regarded as
limiting.

As such, those skilled in the art will appreciate that the
conception, upon which this disclosure is based, may readily
be utilized as a basis for the designing of other structures,
methods and systems for carrying out the several purposes
of the present invention. It is important, therefore, that the
claims be regarded as inciuding such equivalent construc-
tions insofar as they do not depart from the spirit and scope
of the present invention.

It is therefore an object of the present invention to provide
a new and improved speed Bmit indicator and method for
displaying speed and the relevant speed limit that has all of
the advantages of the prior art speed regulators and none of
the disadvantages.

It is another object of the present invention to provide a
new and improved speed limit indicator and method for
displaying speed and the relevant speed limit that may be
casily and efficiently manufactured and marketed,

An even further cobject of the present invention is to
provide a new and improved speed limit indicator and
method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit that
has a low cost of mamufacture with regard to both materials
and labor, and which accordingly is then susceptible of low
prices of sale to the consuming public, thereby making such
speed limit indicator and method for displaying speed and
the relevant speed limit economically available to the buying
public.

Still another object of the present invention is to provide
a new speed limit indicator and method for displaying speed
and the relevant speed limit that provides in the apparatuses
and methods of the prior art some of the advantages thereof,
while simultancously overcoming some of the disadvan-
tages normally associated therewith.

Even still another object of the present invention is to
provide a speed limit indicator and method for displaying
speed and the relevant speed limit for displaying the current
speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal specd Hmit
for the current location in which the vehicle is traveling. This
allows the driver to always be awarc of the cumrent legal
speed limit.

Still yet another object of the present invention is to
provide a speed limit indicator and method for displaying
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speed and the relevant speed limit for displaying the current
speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal speed limit
for the current location in which the vehicle is traveling. This
makes it possible to automatically notify the driver if he is
speeding without requiring him to remove his cyes from the
road.

A further object of the present invention is to provide a
speed limit indicator and method for displaying speed and
the relevant speed limit for displaying the cumrent speed of
a vehicle and how it relatss to the legal speed limit for the
current location in which the vehicle is traveling. This
permits the driver to keep his eyes on the road insiead of
looking for speed limit signs and checking his speed on the
speedometer, thereby reducing the chance of an accident.

An additional object of the present invention is to provide
a speed limit indicator and method for displaying speed and
the relevant speed limit for displaying the currcnt speed of
a vehicle and how it relates to the legal speed limit for the
current location in which the vehicle is traveling. This makes
it possible fo maintain a current database of locations and
their speed limits.

Lastly, it is an object of the present invention to provide
a new and improved speed limit indicator and method for
displaying speed and the relevant speed limit for displaying
the current speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal
speed limit for the current location in which the vehicle is
traveling.

These together with other objects of the invention, along
with the various features of novelty that characterize the
invention, are pointed out with particularity in the claims
annexed to and forming a part of this disclosure. For 2 better
understanding of the invention, iis operating advantages and
the specific objects attained by its uses, reference should be
had to the accompanying drawings and descriptive matter in
which there is illnstrated current embodiments of the inven-
tion.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

The invention will be better understood and objects other
than those set forth above will become apparent when
consideration is given to the following detailed description
thereof, Such description makes reference to the annexed
drawings wherein:

FIG. 1 is a top view of the current embodiment of the
speed limit indicator and method for displaying speed and
the relevant speed limit constructed in accordance with the
principles of IID the present invention.

FIG. 2 is a block diagram of the speed lLimit jndicator and
method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit of
the present invention.

FIG. 3 is a side sectional view of the speed limit indicator
and method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit
of the present invention.

FIG. 4 is a top sectional view of the speed limit indicator
and method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit
of the present invention.

The same reference numerals refer to the same pars
throughout the various figures.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CURRENT
EMBODIMENT

Referring now to the drawings, and paticularly to FIGS.
1-4, a current embodiment of the speed limit indicator and
method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit of
the present invention is shown and generally designated by
the reference numeral 10.
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In FIG. 1, 2 new and improved speed limit indicator and
method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit 10
of the present invention for displaying the current speed of
a vehicle and how it relates to the legal speed limit for the
current location in which the vehicle is traveling is illus-
trated and will be described. More particularly, the speed
limit indicator and method for displaying speed and the
relevant speed limit 10 has a speedometer 12 mounted on a
dashboard 26. Speedometer 12 has a backplate 14 made of
plastic, speed denoting markings 16 painted on backplate 14,
a colored display 18 made of a red plastic filter, and a plastic
necdls 20 rotatably mounted in the center of backplate 14.
A global positioning receiver 22 is positioned adjacent to
speedometer 12. Other gauges 24 typically present on a
dashboard 26 are shown. Note that the broken lines ilins-
trating gauges 24 and dashboard 26 are for illustrative
purposes only and are not part of the current invention.

Moving on to FIG. 2, a new and improved speed limit
indicator and method for displaying speed and the relevant
speed limit 10 of the present invention for displaying the
current speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal
speed limit for the current location in which the vehicle is
traveling is illustrated and will be described. More
particularly, the method for displaying speed and the rel-
evant speed limit has the following sieps. Uploading unit 38
uploads current data to a regional speed limit database 40.
The global positioning system receiver 42 tracks the vehi-
cle’s location and speed, and identifics the relevant speed
limit from the database for that location. The global posi-
tioning system receiver compares the vehicle’s speed and
the relevant speed limit 44, and uses a tone generator 46 to
generate a tone in the event that the vehicle’s speed exceeds
the relevant speed limit. The speed Limit information is sent
from the global positioning system receiver to & filter control
unit 48. The control unit adjusts the colored filter so thal the
speeds above the legal speed limit are displayed in red 50
while the legal speeds are displayed in white 52. This is
accomplished by the control nnit rotating the red filter disc
54 to the appropriste degree.

Continuing with FIG. 3, a new and improved speed limit
indicator and method for displaying speed and the relevant
speed limit 10 of the present invention for displaying the
current speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal
speed limit for the current location in which the vehicle is
traveling is illustrated and will be described. More
particularly, the speed limit indicator and method for dis-
playing speed and the relevant speed limit 10 has a honsing
28 containing backplate 14, colored display 18, axie 30,
needle 20, and display controller 36. The housing 28 is
contained within dashboard 26. Wirc 34 connsets to display
controller 36, and speedometer cable 32 connects to axle 30.

Lastly, in FIG. 4, a new and improved speed limit
indicator and method for displaying speed and the relevant
speed limit 10 of the present invention for displaying the
current speed of a vehicle and how it relates to the legal
speed limit for the current Jocation in which the vehicle is
traveling is illustrated and will be described. More
particularly, the speed limit indicator and method for dis-
Playing speed and the relevant speed limit 10 has a backplate
14, colored display 18, housing 28, and axle 30.

While a current embodiment of the speed limit indicator
and method for displaying speed and the relevant speed limit
hes been described in detail, it should be apparent that
modifications and variations thereto are possible, all of
which fall within the true spirit and scope of the invention.
'With respect to the above description then, it is to be realized
that the optimum dimensional relationships for the parts of
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the invention, to include variations in size, materials, shape,
form, function and manner of operation, assembly and use,
are deemed readily apparent and obvious to one skilled in
the art, and all equivalent relationships to those ilinstrated in
the drawings and described in the specification are intended
to be encompassed by the present invention. For example,
any location determining device such as an inertial naviga-
tion system may be used instead of the global positioning
system receiver described, Also, the plastic components of
the spesdometer could be made from any suitable maierial
such as metal. And although a red filter disc has been
described, it should be appreciated that the colored display
herein described could also take the form of a liquid crystal
display.

Therefore, the foregoing is considered as illustrative only
of the principles of the invention. Furthet, since numerous
modifications and changes will readily occur to those skilled
in the art, it is not desired to limit the inveation to the exact
construction and operation shown and described, and
accordingly, all suitable modifications and equivalents may
be resorted to, falling within the soope of the invention,

I claim:

1. A speed limit indicator comprising:

a colored display to delineate which speed readings are in
violation of the speed limit at a vehicle’s current
location;

a speedometer inlegrally attached to said colored display;
and

a display controller connected to said colored display,
wherein said display controller adjusts said colored
display independently of said speedometer to continu-
ously update the delineation of which speed readings
are in violation of the speed limit at a vehicle’s present
location.

2. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 1, wherein

said colored display is a liquid crystal display.

3. The speed limit indicator as defined in ¢laim 1, wherein
said colored display is a colored filter.

4. The speed Eimit indicator as defined in claim 1, wherein
said speedometer comprises:

a needle;

an axle having opposing ends with one end attached to
said peedle; and

a speedometer cable having opposing ends with one end
attached to said axle.

5. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 4, wherein

said speedometer further comprises:

a backplate;

plurality of speed denoting markings affixed to said
backplate; and

a housing enclosing said backplate.

6. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 1, wherein
said speedometer comprises 2 liquid crystal display.

7. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 1, further
cormaprising:

ap ¢lectrically conductive wire having opposing ends with
one end connected to said display controller; and

a speed limit locating device connected 1o said opposing
end of said wire.

8. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 7, wherein

said speed limit locating device comprises:

a global positioning receiver; and

a database of locations and their corresponding speed
limits which is accessible by said display controller.

9. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 1, wherein
said display controller further comprises a tone generator.
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10. A speed limit indicator comprising:
a global positioning system receiver,;
a display controller connected to said global positioniag
system receiver, wherein said display controller adjusts
a colored display in response to signals from said
global positioning system receiver to contmuously
update the delineation of which speed readings are in
violation of the speed limit al a vehicle’s present
location; and
a speedometer integrally attached to said colored display.
11. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 10,
wherein said global positioning system receiver further
comprises a database of locations and their conesponding
speed limits,
12. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 10,
wherein said colored display is a liquid crystal display.
13, The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 12,
wherein said display controller adjusts said liquid crystal
display independently of said speedometer to continuously
update the delineation of which speed readings arc in
violation of the speed limit at a vehicle's present location.
14. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 10,
wherein said colored display is a colored filter.
15. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 14,
wherein said speedometer comprises:
a needle;
an axle having opposing ends with one end attached to
said needle; and
a speedometer cable having opposing ends with one end
attached to said axte.
16. The seed limit indicator as defined in claim 15,
wherein said speedometer further comprises:
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a backplate;

a plurality of speed denoting markings affixed to said

backplate; and

a housing enclosing said backplate.

17. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 14,
wherein said display controller rotates said colored filter
independently of said speedometer to continuously update
the delineation of which speed readings are in violation of
the speed limit at a vehicle’s present location.

18. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 10,
wherein said specdometer comprises a liquid crystal display.

19. The speed limit indicator as defined in claim 10,
wherein said display controller further comprises a lone
generator.

20. A method of determining speed, the relevant speed
limit, and displaying same, which comprises the steps of:

uploading current information to regional speed limit

database;

determining vehicle location and speed;

obtaining speed limit for said vehicle location from said

database;

comparing vehicle speed to said speed limit;

generating tone if szid vehicle speed exceeds said speed

limit;

sending speed limit to display control unit; and

modifying the limit indicator as defined in claim 1 to

reflect which speeds are below said speed limit and
which speeds exceed said speed limit.



